

**BYLAWS OF THE ONYX-SUBURBAN SKATING ACADEMY**  
**A Michigan Non-Profit Corporation**  
**Member Club of the United States Figure Skating Association**

**ARTICLE I**  
**NAME OF CORPORATION**

**Section 1: NAME:** The name of this Michigan non-profit corporation shall be “Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy”, and shall be referred to in these Bylaws as “the Club”.

**ARTICLE II**  
**PURPOSE**

**Section 1: PURPOSE:** The purpose of the Club is:

- to encourage and promote the instruction, practice and advancement of the members of the Club of any or all of the disciplines of figure skating;
- to encourage and cultivate a spirit of fraternal feeling among ice skaters and enjoyment of the sport;
- to perform such other acts as may be necessary, advisable, proper, permissible or incidental in the realization of the objectives and purposes of this organization;
- to carry out the general policies and objectives of the US Figure Skating Association (“USFS”) including the promotion and support of amateur skaters competing at local, regional, national and international levels;
- to act as host to local, regional, and national figure skating competitions as awarded and sanctioned by US Figure Skating Association.

**ARTICLE III**  
**OFFICERS**

**Section 1: OFFICERS:** The officers shall be President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The offices of Secretary and Vice President may be combined. All officers must be registered Resident or Adult Members of the Club and members of the USFS and over the age of eighteen (18) years of age or the Parent Member who is registered as such for any skater under the age of eighteen (18) years of age. Club membership must have been in effect for at least six (6) months.

**Section 2: DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT:** The President shall take charge of the Club; and preside at all meetings of the Club and of the Board of Directors. The President shall have the entire supervision and management of the Club and its property pending the action of the Board of Directors; the power to suspend any member for violation of the Bylaws or regulations of the Club, pending the approval of the Board; to call special meetings and Club meetings.

The president, together with another designated Board member, shall sign all agreements and contracts made by the Club, upon the approval of the Board of Directors.

**Section 3: DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT:** The Vice President shall assist the President in the discharge of his or her duties and in his or her absence, to assume his or her duties and officiate in his or her stead.

**Section 4: DUTIES OF THE TREASURER:** The Treasurer shall have charge of the funds of the Club and shall keep a record of all receipts and disbursements and shall render a written report when requested by the President or the Board of Directors. Disbursements shall be made only upon vouchers approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has the power, whenever they deem it necessary, to appoint an acting Treasurer. The funds shall be deposited in the name of the Club in a bank approved by the Board of Directors, or in securities approved by the Board of Directors. All disbursements, by check shall be signed by the Treasurer and/or the President or another designated officer or member of the Board of Directors.

**Section 5: DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY:** The Secretary shall keep the “minutes” of the meeting of the Club and the Board of Directors, and supervise all reports and documents connected with the business of the Club. The Secretary shall also supervise the correspondence of the Club and prepare and issue notice of all meetings of the Club and the Board of Directors.

The Secretary shall keep and maintain a complete and accurate copy of this Constitution, its accompanying Bylaws and any and all other rules, regulations, and requirements of the Club. A duplicate copy of these documents shall be provided to each member of the Board of Directors when he/she assumes office. Any member of the Club shall be entitled to inspect these documents, and upon paying a reasonable duplication fee, to receive a copy of any or all of them.

**Section 6: ELECTIONS OF OFFICERS:** The offices of President and Treasurer of the Board shall be elected by the general membership at the spring meeting of the membership year for a term of two (2) years (on even numbered years) along with 3 general board positions. The office of Secretary and Vice-President shall be selected by the presiding Board of Directors at the first Board meeting of every other membership year (on odd numbered years) along with 3 general board positions. The term of office of Secretary and Vice-President will be two (2) years. The position of Secretary and Vice-President may be combined at the Board’s discretion. A notice of election will be posted 30 days prior to the meeting.

**Section 7: VACANCIES:** If any of the foregoing offices becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, and removal or otherwise, the Board of Directors shall elect a successor from the current Board of Directors who shall hold office for the balance of the term.

**Section 8: REMOVAL:** Any Officer or Director may be removed from office by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all of the Board of Directors voting at a special meeting called for this purpose, except that the Director under consideration for removal shall not vote. Article IV, Section 6, Quorum, does not apply, all eligible Board Members must vote, either in person or electronically with no proxies allowed.

**Section 9: CLERICAL ASSISTANCE:** The Board shall have authority to make, in their discretion, appropriations for clerical assistance to the President, Secretary and /or Treasurer.

## ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

**Section 1: QUALIFICATION:** All Directors must be registered members of the USFSA and Resident, Adult or Honorary Members of the Club who are over the age of eighteen (18) years of age or the Parent Member who is registered as such for any skater under the age of eighteen (18) years of age. Club membership must have been in effect for at least six (6) months.

**Section 2: RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD MEMBERS:** All board members shall be required to review and sign the following no later than the first official meeting of the new membership year in which their term commences:

Principles of Ethical Behavior and Conflict of Interest Certification  
Board Member Responsibility Agreement

They shall also be responsible for reviewing the Volunteer Protection Act of 1997 and the US Figure Skating Coaches Code of Ethics, Standards, and Conduct as included in the Onyx-Suburban Academy Board of Directors Handbook.

**Section 3: NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS:** There shall be a Board of Directors composed of eight (8) to ten (10) regular members of the Club including; President (non-voting position), Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Immediate Past President (1 year optional term), and three (3) – six (6) Directors. In addition, the Resident Coaches shall appoint a Pro Liaison to the Board of Directors; however this shall be a non-voting position. At any time, one voting position on the Board may be held by a member of the Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy Resident Coaching Staff, however this position shall not be combined with the position of Pro Liaison.

**Section 4: TERM OF OFFICE:** President and Treasurer of the Board shall be elected in every other year at the regular meeting of the membership for a term of two years and 3 board members will be elected to a two (2) year term (on even numbered years). Vice-President and Secretary will be selected by the presiding Board of Directors at the first Board meeting for a two year term (on odd numbered years). Also on odd number years up to five (5) board members will be elected to a two (2) year term.

**Section 5: VACANCIES:** If a Directorship becomes vacant, the Board shall appoint an eligible Club member as a Director for the balance of the term.

**Section 6: QUORUM:** Two-thirds (2/3) of the voting members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.

**Section 7: PROXIES:** Members of the Board of Directors who cannot be present for all or any portion of a meeting of the Board of Directors may assign their voting rights to any other member of the Board of Directors. Such assignment shall be made in writing bearing the date authorized identification of the meeting affected by the assignment, and the signature of the assignor. Notification of such assignment shall be submitted at the beginning of the meeting to the Secretary or Officer in Charge at the meeting. All proxy assignments received shall be announced to the members of the Board of Directors when received.

**Section 8: MEETINGS:** The Board of Directors shall meet for regular business no less than nine (9) times during the membership year. The date of such meetings shall be stated and posted by the President, or in his or her absence, by the Vice President.

Any four (4) members of the Board may call a Board meeting upon written notice to all the members of the Board of Directors at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting. The notice shall state the date of the meeting, purpose for which the meeting is called, and the names of the four (4) members requesting the meeting.

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, provide for the holding of additional meetings without notice other than such resolution.

Any action by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if consent in writing setting forth the action to be taken shall be signed by two-thirds (2/3) majority of the Directors in office. Written consents shall include those obtained through an electronic form of communication.

**Section 9: AUTHORITY:** The Board shall have the entire authority in the management of affairs and finances of the Club and shall have general control of all its property. All rights and powers connected therein shall be vested in them. The Board shall make such rules as they deem proper respecting the use of the Club's property; prescribe rules for the admission of strangers; fix penalties for offenses against the rules; and make rules for their own government and for the government of the committees appointed by them. However, no such rule or regulation shall discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color, sex, age or religion.

**Section 10: FINANCIAL DUTIES:** All appropriations from the funds of the Club shall be made by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall audit the records of the Secretary, Treasurer and other committees. They shall prepare and submit to the stated annual meeting programs of anticipated expenditures for the coming year together with proposals of sources of revenue to meet it. The Board shall be responsible for filing federal and state income tax returns yearly and perform any other duties necessary by the Board. The Board shall have the power to limit the indebtedness of a member of the Club.

**Section 11: BOARD MEMBER DUTIES:** The office of the Board members shall be *ipso facto* vacated under the following circumstances:

- (a) if he/she is found to be mentally incapacitated;
- (b) if he/she is convicted of a felony;
- (c) if by notice in writing to the Club he/she resigns the office of Director;
- (d) or if he/she is no longer A eligible member of the Club;
- (e) or has failed to attend three (3) or more Board meetings per membership year.

**Section 12: USFS DELEGATE:** The Board shall appoint from among its eligible registered members, a number of delegates in proportion to the total number of registered members of such member *Club* during the preceding fiscal years as specified in the USFS Bylaws, Article XV. The delegate(s) shall be representative(s) between the Club and the Association and shall attend the USFS Governing Council meeting, either in person or by proxy. Said Club shall file a certificate of such appointment with the Association.

**Section 13: STANDING COMMITTEES:** The President shall appoint all standing committees subject to approval by the Board which shall have full authority over them except as hereinafter provided. The President shall appoint such other committees as shall be deemed necessary, subject to be approved by the Board.

The Standing Committees and their responsibilities shall be:

- 1) Membership: Shall present candidates for membership in the *Club* by registering the new members with the USFS and the Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy. The committee will keep an updated roster by category of membership and provide such a roster to all members of the Board of Directors, the Figure Skating Director, and the rink management staff. The committee shall update the roster with respect to member free skate test level and the committee shall

assign Seniority Numbers for the sake of contract ice registration. The committee shall be presided over by the person designated as the Membership Chairperson who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors as necessary.

2) Test: The Test Committee shall have overall responsibility for coordination of the USFS testing program for the Club. The committee will arrange tests and notify members of such test, conduct the test sessions, and register the test results with the USFS. They will also provide successful test candidates with the appropriate recognition. The committee shall be presided over by the person designated as the Test Chairperson who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors as necessary.

3) Competition: This committee will coordinate any competition sponsored by the Club. They will be responsible for all arrangements including contracting with judges and officials, arranging for facilities, advertising the event, and soliciting participants. The committee shall be presided over by the person designated as the Competition Chairperson who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors as necessary.

4) Fund Raising: This committee will coordinate the fund raising efforts of the Club by determining an appropriate set of fundraisers, coordination of fundraisers, and scheduling Club members to work at the fundraisers. The committee shall be presided over by the person designated as the Fund Raising Chairperson who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

5) Ice Show: This committee will be responsible for coordinating the annual ice show by working closely with the rink's Figure Skating Director. The committee shall be presided over by the person designated as the Ice Show Chairperson who shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

**Section 14: BOARD OF APPROVAL FOR COMPETITION AND EXHIBITION:** No member or members of the Club shall make entry in the name of the Club in competition or exhibition except with the approval of the Board of Directors, or someone given this authority by them.

## **ARTICLE V ELECTION OF BOARD**

**Section 1: TIME:** Elections for the Board of Directors shall be held in the spring of each year, with the term of office from July 1 through June 30 of the following year. Notice of election shall be posted prior to the spring meeting.

**Section 2: NOMINATION:** The candidates for the Board shall be nominated by a nominating committee selected by the President and approved by the Board of Directors. The names of the candidates selected by the nominating committee shall be posted on the official bulletin boards. All nominations are closed 7 days prior to the elections.

**Section 3: VOTING:** Members may cast their ballots in person at the spring general meeting. The persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected to the vacant Board of Directors positions.

## **ARTICLE VI MEMBERSHIP**

**Section 1: CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP:** The Club shall have such classes of membership as are established from time to time by the Board of Directors. The current classes of membership are as follows.

a.) RESIDENT MEMBER – This membership allows members to have a voting right and entitles them to hold office. Along with these privileges, Resident Members have first priority over ice time. All Resident members must represent the Onyx Suburban-Skating Academy as their home Club. Any member under the age of eighteen (18) years of age is considered a minor and shall require a parent or guardian to represent their interest in the Club and is hereby referred to as a Parent Member. The parent or legal guardian must also become a member of the USFS. The parent or legal guardian does not have skating privileges in the Club with this membership.

b.) SECOND CLUB MEMBER – Second Club Members shall have no privileges of the Club except the right to purchase ice. All Second Club Members must be a home Club member at another USFS Club in order to qualify for this membership.

c.) ADULT MEMBER – Shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older. This membership allows members to have a voting right and entitles them to hold office.

d.) PRE-ACADEMY (formerly LEARN TO SKATE MEMBERSHIP) – Learn to Skate Members must be enrolled in the Onyx Rochester Ice Arena or Suburban Ice Macomb Learn to Skate program and must become a member of the USFS. They shall not have privileges of the Club except the right to contract two (2) sessions per week, and may participate in off-ice programs. Members will not be able to vote or hold office and may only use this membership for a maximum of two years. This membership can be upgraded to Resident membership any time during the membership year by paying the difference between the two memberships.

e.) SYNCHRO – Phoenix members either in Learn to Skate program or whose USFS membership at home club. Synchro members are only allowed to contract two (2) hour session per week and may participate in off-ice programs. Synchro members are not entitled to vote or hold office. No volunteer service hours are required but is encouraged.

f.) HONORARY MEMBERSHIP – This is a membership that is granted to a person by the Board of Directors and shall pay no fee or dues.

g.) INTERNATIONAL MEMBERSHIP – International members shall have no privileges of the Club except the right to purchase ice. All “International” members must be members of the governing body of figure skating in their home country in order to qualify for this membership.

**Section 2: VOTING RIGHTS:** The Board of Directors shall determine the classes of membership and the criteria for voting membership, and the rights, privileges, preferences, restrictions and conditions applicable to each class of membership. There is no requirement that each class of membership have the same rights, privileges, preferences, restrictions, and conditions. Each voting member of the Club satisfying the criteria set by the Board of Directors for voting membership shall be entitled to one vote. Voting by proxy shall not be permitted.

**Section 3: CANDIDATES FOR MEMBERSHIP:** Candidates for membership in the Club shall be individuals interested in the objectives and mission of the Club who conform to the definition of eligible or ineligible skater as specified in the rules and constitution of the USFS and the Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy. All candidates for membership must submit a signed copy of the Parent Code of Conduct and/or Skater Code of Conduct, as applicable.

**Section 4: APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP:** All applications shall be considered as accepted for membership without specific action taken by the Board of Directors. However, the Board of Directors reserves the right to refuse membership to anyone who has not met the requirements of membership so long as the refusal is not based on race, creed, color, sex, age or religion.

**Section 5: CODE OF ETHICS:** It shall be the responsibility of all members of the Club, including skaters and Parent members, to be thoroughly familiar with the rules of the Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy, to comply with them in full, and to exemplify the highest standards of fairness, ethical behavior, and genuine good sportsmanship at any and all times such that they are actively representing the Club and the sport of figure skating for any reason and circumstance.

**Section 5A: HARASSMENT AND ABUSE:** It shall be set forth that all members of the Club are bound by the USFS Policy Statement on Harassment and Abuse.

**Section 6: SUSPEND OR EXPEL:** The Board shall have the power to suspend or expel any member for violations of the constitution and Bylaws of for conduct, which they shall deem improper, but no member shall be expelled or suspended without the right to a hearing. Termination and/or suspension of membership does not relieve the terminated or suspended member from any obligations for charges incurred, services or benefits actually rendered, dues assessments, or fees arising from a contract or otherwise. All members suspended or expelled for any reason may present a written request for appeal to the Board of Directors who shall grant an appeal hearing. Any party affected by this action may request a mediator from outside the Club to oversee the appeal process. If requested, the matter shall be referred to the management of the Onyx-Rochester Ice arena as the outside party.

**Section 7: READMIT TO MEMBERSHIP:** The Board may, at a regular meeting, readmit to membership, without the payment of a second initiation fee, any former member whose resignation has been fully accepted. Such readmission must be by ballot and two negative votes shall reject. No rejected candidate shall be again proposed for reinstatement within six months after rejection.

**Section 8: DROP AND REINSTATE TO MEMBERSHIP:** The Board may, as hereinafter provided, drop from the roll a delinquent member and also may reinstate such members as hereinafter provided.

**Section 9: ARREARS FOR DUES:** Any member in arrears for dues, or other indebtedness, shall be notified by mail by the Secretary at their last known address. If the amount is not paid in full within one-month hereafter, the name of the delinquent member shall be reported by the Secretary to the Board of Directors at their next meeting. The Board of Directors may drop from the roll any name of such delinquent member and as such will be reported to the USFS. A member dropped from the roll for non-payment of dues, or other indebtedness, may, upon payment of the full amount due, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, be reinstated to full membership.

**Section 10: ARREARS FOR DUES RESTRICTIONS:** No member in arrears for dues, or other indebtedness, shall be eligible to hold office, entitled to vote, or to enter in any Club tests or competition. This shall include any member in arrears for Club dues, ice contract commitments, or any other membership requirements as set forth in the Bylaws and membership rules.

**Section 11: RESIGNATION:** Any member not in arrears for dues, or other indebtedness, may tender a written resignation of his or her membership to the Secretary, who shall report the same to the Board of Directors at their next meeting for their action. Any monies refunded due to voluntary resignation shall be done so at the discretion of the board. The Club is not responsible for refunds or credits for ice session contract payments or debts.

**Section 12: HONORARY MEMBERS:** Honorary members may be elected at any meeting of the Club after recommendations by the Board of Directors by two-thirds (2/3) majority. An honorary member shall be free from initiation fees, dues and/or assessments. They may represent the Club in exhibitions and attend ice skating sessions under the same rules governing active members. They shall not be nominated or elected to office or a member of the Board of Directors, but may be appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy, where, only, they shall have a vote. Honorary members have no vote unless otherwise provided. They shall have no claim on the assets or property of the Club. They shall not represent the Club in competitions unless approved by Board of Directors.

**Section 13: RESPONSIBILITIES FOR GUEST:** Club members shall be responsible for the conduct and indebtedness of all persons admitted to the Club's property at their request.

**Section 14: PROFESSIONAL STAFF:** All coaches who have been granted Resident Coach status for the Club shall be deemed a full member of the Club with privileges, rights, and responsibilities as authorized in the Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy and USFS Bylaws, with the exception of the right to vote.

**Section 15: VOLUNTEER SERVICE HOURS:** All members are required to avail themselves to the Club for Club functions. Service hour requirements are based on type of membership in the Club and as such, are designated by the Board of Directors. Failure to participate in Club events and fund raising efforts or submit payment in lieu of participation shall incur the same penalty as the non-payment of dues and fees and may any will result in the denial of membership the following year. All Service hour opportunities and requirements shall be included in the Membership Handbook for the applicable membership year.

## **ARTICLE VII GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS**

**Section 1: TIME:** There shall be at least one annual stated General membership meeting each membership year.

**Section 2: SPECIAL MEETINGS:** The Secretary shall call special meetings at the direction of the President, or upon the written request of ten (10%) percent of the Club members in good standing.

**Section 3: QUORUM:** Twenty percent (20%) percent of the Club's membership who are entitled to vote and are in good standing must be represented at any general meeting to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum is not met at the first meeting, there shall be a motion made to adjourn the meeting. A new meeting may be called to order after a period of time of not less than 15 minutes without prior notice. No quorum shall be required at the rescheduled meeting for the transaction of business.

**Section 4: NOTICES:** Notices of stated and special meetings shall be mailed by the Secretary to every member at least ten (10) days in advance thereof, and/or shall be posted by the Secretary for the same length of time on the Club bulletin Board.

**Section 5: SPECIAL MEETING LIMITATION:** No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except that of which notice was given.

**ARTICLE VIII  
ORDER OF BUSINESS/RULES OF ORDER**

**Section 1: SEQUENCE:** As stated and special meetings of the Board of Directors of the membership of the Club, the following order of business shall be observed (to the extent applicable):

- a.) Roll Call
- b.) Reading of the minutes of previous meetings
- c.) Reports of officers
- d.) Reports of committees
- e.) Elections of officers
- f.) Unfinished business
- g.) New business
- h.) Adjournment

**Section 2: ORDER OF MOTIONS:**

When a question is before the meeting, no motion shall be entertained except:

- a.) To adjourn
- b.) To lay on the table
- c.) The previous question
- d.) To postpone
- e.) To commit
- f.) To amend

Which several motions shall have precedence in the order above given, and the first three shall be decided without debate.

**Section 3: YEAS AND NAYS:** If any two members shall request, the yeas and nays shall be called upon any question, where upon each member shall vote as his or her name is called, without debate, unless executed from voting by the meetings, and the vote so taken shall be recorded in the minutes.

**Section 4: TO RECONSIDER:** A motion to reconsider must be made by a member who voted with the majority, and at the same or succeeding meeting.

**Section 5: MAJORITY VOTE:** Except as otherwise provided, all questions shall be determined by a majority vote.

The President may only vote in case of a tie, except when the yeas and nays are ordered in which case he or she shall vote when his or her name is called. If the result is a tie, the motion shall be declared lost.

**Section 6: ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER:** All questions of parliamentary practice not herein provided for shall be determined in accordance with then-current version of Robert's Rules of Order.

## **ARTICLE IX GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES**

**Section 1: COMPLAINTS:** Any member or members having complaint against another member for the infraction of any law or rule, or for conduct injurious to the Club, may report the same, in writing, to the Board of Directors. Such complaint shall set forth the facts of the case, together with the names of witnesses, if any. After receiving such complaint, a closed meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held as soon as practicable to investigate the same. The complainant(s) and the member(s) complained against shall be given copies of any written statements regarding the complaint(s), and shall be notified at least seven (7) days prior to a hearing date.

**Section 2: HEARING:** The Board of Directors shall set a hearing date and give all parties at least seven (7) days written notice prior to such date. The Board of Directors shall establish rules of procedure for such hearing, which will be provided to all parties at least five (5) days prior to the hearing. Both the complainant and the person complained against will have the right to present evidence. The Board of Directors will vote within 24 hours of such hearing on any action to be taken. The decision of the Board shall be reduced to writing and shall provide reasons for the decision. The decision of the Board will be final.

**Section 3: NOTICE:** Any notice required by this section shall be given by any method reasonably calculated to provide actual notice, provided that in event any notice is given by mail, it is given by first class or registered mail to the last known address of the involved member of the Club according to Club records.

## **ARTICLE X FEES, DUES AND ASSESSMENTS**

**Section 1: FEES, DUES AND ASSESSMENTS:** The annual dues and other fees and assessments payable to the Club by its members shall be in such amount as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

**Section 2: PROSPECTIVE MEMBERS:** A prospective member may be admitted to five (5) Club sessions per season provided they are accompanied by a Club member or Onyx-Suburban Skating Academy staff coach. The prospective Club member must be a USFS member or a member of an internationally recognized skating authority.

**Section 3: GUESTS:** A visiting skater from an out of town USFS member Club or a USFSA individual member may make arrangements with the Figure Skating Director to skate on Club ice while visiting.

**ARTICLE XI  
FISCAL YEAR**

**Section 1: FISCAL YEAR:** The Club's fiscal year shall run from January 1 through December 31 of each year, unless the Board of Directors adopts a different fiscal year.

**ARTICLE XII  
MEMBERSHIP IN THE USFSA**

**Section 1: MAINTENANCE OF USFS MEMBERSHIP:** The Club shall become a member and maintain its membership in the USFS, and shall conduct its affairs in a manner consistent with the Bylaws of the USFS. Members of the Club shall conduct themselves in a manner consistent with the Code of Ethics of the USFS and the United States Olympic Committee.

**ARTICLE XIII  
AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS**

**Section 1: AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS:** These Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Club present and entitled to vote, in person, at a regularly called meeting of the Club. Changes in Bylaws will be posted prior to meeting.

revised 5/10